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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report (this "Quarterly Report") contains “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995, as well as historical information. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may
cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or industry results, to be materially different from anticipated results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. When used in this Quarterly Report, statements that are not statements of current or historical fact
may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “plan,” “intend,” “may,” “will,” “expect,” “believe,” “could,”
“anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue” or similar expressions or other variations or comparable terminology are intended to identify such forward-looking
statements, although some forward-looking statements are expressed differently. We remind readers that forward-looking statements are merely predictions
and therefore inherently subject to uncertainties and other factors and involve known and unknown risks that could cause the actual results, performance,
levels of activity or our achievements or industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance levels of activity or our achievements
or industry results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from anticipated
results expressed or implied by forward-looking statements include, among others:

9 <

99 <

*  our ability to obtain sufficient capital or strategic business arrangements to fund our operations and expansion plans, including meeting our financial
obligations under various licensing and other strategic arrangements, the funding of our clinical trials for product candidates in our development
programs for our Immuno-oncology Program, our Ischemic Repair Program and our Immune Modulation Program, and the commercialization of the
relevant technology;

e our ability to build and maintain the management and human resources infrastructure necessary to support the growth of our business;

e our ability to integrate our acquired businesses successfully and grow such acquired businesses as anticipated, including expanding our PCT
business;

*  whether a market is established for our cell-based products and services and our ability to capture a meaningful share of this market;

» scientific and medical developments beyond our control;

*  our ability to obtain and maintain, as applicable, appropriate governmental licenses, accreditations or certifications or comply with healthcare laws
and regulations or any other adverse effect or limitations caused by government regulation of our business;

*  whether any of our current or future patent applications result in issued patents, the scope of those patents and our ability to obtain and maintain
other rights to technology required or desirable for the conduct of our business; and our ability to commercialize products without infringing the
claims of third party patents;

»  whether any potential strategic or financial benefits of various licensing agreements will be realized;

» the results of our development activities, including the results of our Intus Phase 3 clinical trial of CLBS20, being developed to treat metastatic
melanoma;

*  our ability to complete our other planned clinical trials (or initiate other trials) in accordance with our estimated timelines due to delays associated
with enrolling patients due to the novelty of the treatment, the size of the patient population and the need of patients to meet the inclusion criteria of
the trial or otherwise;

*  our ability to satisfy our obligations under our loan agreement;

»  other factors discussed in "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on
March 2, 2015 (our 2014 Form 10-K).

The factors discussed herein, including those risks described in "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and elsewhere in our 2014 Form 10-K and in the Company's other
periodic filings with the SEC, which are available for review at www.sec.gov under “Search for Company Filings” could cause actual results and
developments to be materially different from those expressed or implied by such statements. All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly
qualified in their entirety by these and other factors. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only
as of the date they were made. Except as required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, December 31,
2015 2014
ASSETS (Unaudited)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,211,324 $ 19,174,061
Marketable securities 3,011,693 7,080,053
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $382,721 and $385,362 at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively 1,297,538 3,111,274
Deferred costs 2,973,487 2,566,989
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,980,547 4,349,167

Total current assets 47,474,589 36,281,544
Property, plant and equipment, net 16,811,639 15,960,731
Goodwill 25,209,336 25,209,336
Intangible assets, net 37,857,801 47,560,406
Other assets 1,271,381 1,263,375

Total assets $ 128,624,746  $ 126,275,392

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 2,266,337 $ 5,661,173
Accrued liabilities 7,178,022 4,322,901
Long-term debt, current 1,361,148 1,109,612
Notes payable, current 882,696 816,776
Unearned revenues 4,643,033 4,334,120
Total current liabilities 16,331,236 16,244,582
Long-term Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 14,519,460 18,176,190
Notes payable 1,254,609 825,897
Long-term debt 13,638,852 13,890,388
Acquisition-related contingent consideration 13,460,000 18,260,000
Other long-term liabilities 3,467,248 804,546
Total liabilities $ 62,671,405 $ 68,201,603
Commitments and Contingencies
EQUITY
Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock, authorized, 20,000,000 shares; Series B convertible redeemable preferred stock

liquidation value, 0.01 share of common stock, $.01 par value; 825,000 shares designated; issued and outstanding, 10,000 shares at

June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 100 100
Common stock, $.001 par value, authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, 55,453,014 and 36,783,857 shares, at June 30,

2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively 55,453 36,784
Additional paid-in capital 394,589,826 350,428,903
Treasury stock, at cost (705,742) (705,742)
Accumulated deficit (327,559,694) (291,246,538)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,866 1,329

Total Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. stockholders' equity 66,381,809 58,514,836

Noncontrolling interests (428,468) (441,047)
Total equity 65,953,341 58,073,789
Total liabilities and equity $ 128,624,746 $ 126,275,392

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues
Research and development
Impairment of intangible assets
Selling, general, and administrative

Total operating costs and expenses

Operating loss

Other expense:
Other income (expense), net

Interest expense

Loss before (benefit) provision for income taxes and noncontrolling interests
(Benefit) provision for income taxes

Net loss

Less - loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net loss attributable to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. common stockholders

Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.
common stockholders

Weighted average common shares outstanding

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
$ 5,866,963 $ 4,488,932 9,039,242 8,544,507
5,798,796 3,677,355 9,167,408 7,503,370
7,600,744 5,796,022 14,404,376 10,554,535
9,400,000 — 9,400,000 —
8,736,373 7,446,017 19,824,272 16,416,032
31,535,913 16,919,394 52,796,056 34,473,937
(25,668,950) (12,430,462) (43,756,814) (25,929,430)
5,354,845 (185,737) 4,808,818 (375,288)
(547,275) (105,906) (1,098,239) (200,062)
4,807,570 (291,643) 3,710,579 (575,350)
(20,861,380) (12,722,105) (40,046,235) (26,504,780)
(3,703,363) 47,387 (3,656,730) 94,796
(17,158,017) (12,769,492) (36,389,505) (26,599,576)
(31,757) (164,474) (76,349) (312,502)
$  (17,126,260) $  (12,605,018) (36,313,156) (26,287,074)
$ 038 $ (0.40) (0.88) (0.88)
44,574,796 31,739,417 41,104,127 29,940,128

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Index

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Net loss $  (17,158,017) $ (12,769,492) $ (36,389,505) $  (26,599,576)
Other comprehensive loss:
Available for sale securities - net unrealized loss 1,866 998 537 998
Total other comprehensive loss 1,866 998 537 998
Comprehensive loss (17,156,151) (12,768,494) (36,388,968) (26,598,578)
Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (31,757) (164,474) (76,349) (312,502)
Comprehensive loss attributable to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. common stockholders $  (17,124,394) $§  (12,604,020) $ (36,312,619) $ (26,286,076)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31,
2013

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities

Equity-based compensation

Net proceeds from issuance of
common stock

Proceeds from option
exercises

Proceeds from warrant
exercises

Shares issued in CSC
acquisition

Change in ownership in
subsidiary

Balance at June 30, 2014

Balance at December 31,
2014

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities

Equity-based compensation

Net proceeds from issuance of
common stock

Change in ownership in
subsidiary

Balance at June 30, 2015

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Unaudited)
Total
Series B Convertible Caladrius
Preferred Stock Common Stock Accumulated Biosciences, Non-
Additional Other Inc. Controlling
Paid in Comprehensive Accumulated Treasury Stockholders' Interest in Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Stock Equity Subsidiary Equity
10,000 $ 100 27,196,537  $27,197 $299,594,525 $ — $(236,373,605)  $(705,742) $62,542,475 $(516,040) $62,026,435

— — — — — — (26,287,074) — (26,287,074) (312,502)  (26,599,576)

— — — — — 998 — — 998 — 998

— — 456,709 457 5,652,994 — — — 5,653,451 — 5,653,451

= = 1,650,081 1,650 10,147,788 = = = 10,149,438 = 10,149,438

— — 41,136 41 230,142 — — — 230,183 — 230,183

— — 265,250 264 1,373,661 — — — 1,373,925 — 1,373,925

— — 5,329,510 5,330 24,457,121 — — — 24,462,451 — 24,462,451

— — — — (86,618) — — — (86,618) 86,618 —
10,000 $ 100 34,939,223 $34,939 $341,369,613 $ 998 $(262,660,679) $(705,742) $78,039,229 $(741,924)  $77,297,305

Total
Series B Convertible Caladrius
Preferred Stock Common Stock Accumulated Biosciences, Non-
Additional Other Inc. Controlling
Paid in Comprehensive Accumulated Treasury Stockholders' Interest in Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Stock Equity Subsidiary Equity
10,000 $ 100 36,783,857  $36,784 $350,428,903 $ 1,329 $(291,246,538)  $(705,742) $58,514,836 $(441,047) $58,073,789

_ — — — — — (36,313,156) — (36,313,156) (76,349)  (36,389,505)

= = = - = 537 = = 537 = 537

— — 903,337 903 8,131,203 — — — 8,132,106 — 8,132,106

— — 17,765,820 17,766 36,118,648 — — — 36,136,414 — 36,136,414

— — — — (88,928) — — — (88,928) 88,928 —
10,000 $ 100 55,453,014  $55,453 $394,589,826 $ 1,866 $(327,559,694)  $(705,742) $66,381,809 $(428,468) $65,953,341

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Equity-based compensation expense
Depreciation and amortization

Changes in fair value of derivative liability

Change in acquisition-related contingent consideration

Impairment of intangible assets

Bad debt recovery

Deferred income taxes

Accretion on marketable securities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts receivable
Deferred costs
Unearned revenues

Other assets

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net cash received in acquisitions
Purchase of marketable securities
Sale of marketable securities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of options
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repayment of mortgage loan
Proceeds from notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest

Supplemental schedule of non-cash financing activities:

Common stock and contingent consideration issued with the acquisition of CSC

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014
(36,389,505) (26,599,576)
8,132,106 5,653,451
1,254,305 987,698
— (23,175)
(4,800,000) 400,000
9,400,000 —
(2,641) (2,020)
(3,656,730) 94,796
33,054 —
368,620 (944,297)
1,816,376 (602,132)
(406,498) (762,788)
308,912 1,013,946
(8,005) (106,909)
2,122,987 (1,615,234)
(21,827,019) (22,506,240)
— 50,894
(3,013,157) (919,829)
7,049,000 —
(1,802,607) (2,439,266)
2,233,236 (3,308,201)
— 230,183
_ 1,373,925
36,136,414 10,149,439
— (105,450)
1,089,611 1,340,981
(594,979) (443,325)
36,631,046 12,545,753
17,037,263 (13,268,688)
19,174,061 46,133,759
36,211,324 32,865,071
744,811 196,200
— 35,252,451
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CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 — The Business

Overview

Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (“we,” “us”, "our", “Caladrius” or the “Company”) is among the first of a new breed of immunotherapy companies with
proven expertise and unique experience in cell process optimization, development, and manufacturing. Caladrius is a company combining a leading cell
therapy service provider with a development pipeline including late-stage clinical programs based on proprietary platform technology for immuno-oncology,
as well as additional platform technologies for ischemic repair and immunomodulation. This integrated approach supports the industry in bringing significant
life-improving medical treatments to market.

Our most advanced clinical program is based on our tumor cell/dendritic cell technology. It is focused on the development of an innovative cancer
treatment (i.e., vaccine) that is designed to target the cells responsible for tumor growth and metastasis, known as cancer- or tumor-initiating cells ("CICs"),
using purified CICs from a patient’s own tumor as an antigen source to induce or enhance an anti-tumor immune response in the patient. CLBS20, our lead
product candidate based on this platform technology, targets malignant melanoma. CLBS20 is being studied in patients with recurrent Stage III or Stage IV
metastatic melanoma. The program has been granted Fast Track and Orphan designation by the Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA") as well as
Advanced Therapeutic Medicinal Product classification by the European Medicines Agency (the "EMA"). The protocol for the Phase 3 study, known as the
Intus study, is the subject of a Special Protocol Assessment ("SPA") by the FDA. Our SPA letter states that our Phase 3 clinical trial is adequately designed to
provide the necessary data that, depending on outcome, could support a Biologics License Application ("BLA") seeking marketing approval of CLBS20. The
Intus Study is the subject of a $17.7 million grant from the California Institute for Regenerative Medicine, announced in May 2015. The study protocol calls
for randomizing 250 patients. Patient screening began in the first quarter of 2015 and randomization of the first patient was announced in April 2015. An
interim analysis is planned after 99 trial events (i.e., deaths) and is expected to occur during the fourth quarter of 2017. We are also evaluating other clinical
indications for which we may advance this program, including ovarian, liver, colon, kidney, brain and lung cancers.

We are also developing therapies that are designed to utilize CD34 cells to regenerate tissue impacted by ischemia. Ischemia occurs when the supply
of oxygenated blood in the body is restricted, causing local tissue distress and death. Ischemia can lead to conditions such as chronic heart failure ("CHF")
and critical limb ischemia ("CLI"). We seek to improve oxygen delivery to affected tissues through the development and formation of new blood vessels. The
ischemic repair program is supported by data from the clinical study of CLBS10, a product candidate designed to prevent heart failure and major adverse
cardiac events following a severe heart attack (known as an ST segment elevation myocardial infarction ("STEMI")). After a thorough review, the Company
has set the future direction for its ischemic repair program. Based on an analysis of the available Phase 2 data from the PreSERVE-AMI trial, an updated
commercial assessment considering all major potential relevant cardiovascular indications and consultation with the Company’s new cardiovascular scientific
advisory board and the Science and Technology Committee of the Board of Directors, Caladrius has decided that it will not pursue further development of
CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-AMI Phase 2 clinical study. However, we believe that the positive suggestion of safety and therapeutic
activity seen to date in the CLBS10 study supports the underlying platform technology and enables the Company’s exploration of what we believe to be more
commercially viable indications of chronic heart failure (CLBS14) and/or critical limb ischemia (CLBS12) as targets for further development. In the case of
CLI, we are actively exploring a program to develop CLBS12 in Japan under Japan’s regenerative medicine law. Japan’s regenerative medicine law enables
an expedited path to conditional approval for regenerative medicine products that show sufficient safety evidence and signals of efficacy in a phase 2 study.
This program is supported by three previous studies of autologous CD34 cells in no-option CLI patients. These other indications are early stage opportunities,
and would require external funding and/or partnerships to proceed to the next step in clinical development.

We are also developing a therapy that is designed to utilize Regulatory T Cells ("Tregs") to treat diseases caused by imbalances in an individual's
immune system. This novel approach seeks to restore immune balance by enhancing Treg cell number and function. Tregs are a natural part of the human
immune system and regulate the activity of T effector cells, the cells that are responsible for protecting the body from viruses and other foreign antigens.
When Tregs function properly, only harmful foreign materials are attacked by T effector cells. In autoimmune disease, it is thought that deficient Treg activity
permits the T effector cells to attack the body's own tissues. We have received FDA concurrence that we may proceed to a Phase 2 study (the "Trutina study")
of CLBS03, a Treg-based therapeutic being developed to treat type 1 diabetes mellitus ("T1DM") in adolescents. We are evaluating other clinical indications
into which we may advance this program, including steroid-resistant asthma, multiple sclerosis, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, inflammatory bowel
disease, graft versus host disease, lupus, and rheumatoid arthritis.
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We believe that cell-based therapies have the potential to create a paradigm change in the treatment for a variety of diseases and conditions and we
are evaluating other programs that we view as holding particular promise, including an aesthetics program for a topical skin application and a very small
embryonic like ("VSEL™") stem cell program for the treatment of retinal degeneration, bone restoration and wound healing. We have also received recent
grants to support early stage research for retinal disease using human-induced pluripotent stem cells.

Through our wholly owned subsidiary, PCT, LLC, a Caladrius company ("PCT"), we are recognized as a world industry leader in providing high-
quality innovative and reliable manufacturing capabilities and engineering solutions (e.g., process and assay development, optimization and automation) in
the development of cell-based therapies. We currently operate three facilities qualified under Good Manufacturing Practices ("cGMPs") in Allendale, NJ,
Mountain View, CA and Irvine, CA, and are positioned to expand our capacity both in the United States and internationally, as needed. In addition to
leveraging this core expertise in the development of our own products, we partner opportunistically with other industry leaders who recognize our unique
ability to significantly improve their manufacturing processes and supply clinical and commercial material.

We look forward to further advancement of our cell-based therapies to the market and to helping patients suffering from life-threatening medical
conditions. Coupling our development expertise with our strong process development and manufacturing capability, we believe the stage is set for us to
realize meaningful clinical development of our own proprietary platform technologies and manufacturing advancements, further positioning Caladrius as a
leader in the immuno-oncology field and the cell therapy industry.

We anticipate requiring additional capital in order to fund the development of cell therapy product candidates and to grow the PCT business. To
meet our short and long term liquidity needs, we currently expect to use existing cash and cash equivalents balances, our revenue generating activities, and a
variety of other means, including our existing common stock purchase agreements with Aspire Capital. Other sources of liquidity could include additional
potential issuances of debt or equity securities in public or private financings, additional warrant exercises, option exercises, partnerships and/or
collaborations, and/or sale of assets. In addition, we will continue to seek as appropriate grants for scientific and clinical studies from various governmental
agencies and foundations. We believe that our current cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances and revenue generating activities, along with
access to funds under our agreement with Aspire Capital, will be sufficient to fund the business through the next 12 months. While we continue to seek
capital through a number of means, there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available on acceptable terms, if at all. If we are unable to
access capital necessary to meet our long-term liquidity needs, we may have to delay or discontinue the acquisition and development of cell therapies, and/or
the expansion of our business or raise funds on terms that we currently consider unfavorable.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“generally accepted accounting principles”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and
Article 10 of Regulation S-X of the SEC for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by
generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, which are unaudited, include all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary to present fairly the
Company’s financial position as of June 30, 2015 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the periods presented. The unaudited consolidated
financial statements herein should be read together with the historical consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 included in our 2014 Form 10-K. Operating results for the six months ended June 30, 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2015.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The
Company bases its estimates on historical experience and other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The Company makes critical
estimates and assumptions in determining the fair values of goodwill for potential goodwill impairments for our reporting units, fair values of In-Process
R&D assets, fair values of acquisition-related contingent considerations, useful lives of our tangible and intangible assets, allowances for doubtful accounts,
and stock-based awards values. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.
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An accounting policy is considered to be critical if it is important to the Company’s financial condition and results of operations and if it requires
management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments in its application.
Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. and its wholly-owned and partially-owned subsidiaries
and affiliates as listed below.

Entity Percentage of Ownership Location
Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. 100% United States of America
NeoStem Therapies, Inc. 100% United States of America
Stem Cell Technologies, Inc. 100% United States of America
Amorcyte, LLC 100% United States of America
PCT, LLC, a Caladrius Company 100% United States of America
NeoStem Family Storage, LLC 100% United States of America
Athelos Corporation (1) 96.9% United States of America
PCT Allendale, LLC 100% United States of America
NeoStem Oncology, LLC 100% United States of America

(1) As of June 30, 2015, Becton Dickinson's ownership interest in Athelos was 3.1%.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In addition to the policies below, our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our
2014 Form 10-K. There were no changes to these policies during the six months ended June 30, 2015.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid, investments with maturities of 90 days or less when purchased.

Marketable Securities

The Company determines the appropriate classification of our marketable securities at the time of purchase and reevaluates such designation at each
balance sheet date. All of our marketable securities are considered as available-for-sale and carried at estimated fair values and reported in either cash
equivalents or marketable securities. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are excluded from net income and reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) as a separate component of stockholders' equity. Other income (expense), net, includes interest, dividends, amortization of
purchase premiums and discounts, realized gains and losses on sales of securities and other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of securities, if any. The
cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. We regularly review all of our investments for other-than-temporary declines in fair
value. Our review includes the consideration of the cause of the impairment, including the creditworthiness of the security issuers, the number of securities in
an unrealized loss position, the severity and duration of the unrealized losses, whether we have the intent to sell the securities and whether it is more likely
than not that we will be required to sell the securities before the recovery of their amortized cost basis. When we determine that the decline in fair value of an
investment is below our accounting basis and this decline is other-than-temporary, we reduce the carrying value of the security we hold and record a loss for
the amount of such decline.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful accounts. The Company applies judgment in connection
with establishing the allowance for doubtful accounts. Specifically, the Company analyzes the aging of accounts receivable balances, historical bad debts,
customer concentration and credit-worthiness, current economic trends and changes in the Company’s customer payment terms. Significant changes in
customer concentrations or payment terms, deterioration of customer credit-worthiness or weakening economic trends could have a significant impact on the
collectability of the receivables and the Company’s operating results. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resulting in
an
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impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. Management regularly reviews the aging of receivables and changes in
payment trends by its customers, and records a reserve when it believes collection of amounts due are at risk.

Deferred Costs

Deferred costs primarily represents costs incurred on in process projects at PCT that have not been completed. The Company reviews these projects
periodically to determine that the value of each project is stated at the lower of cost or market.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company expenses all share-based payment awards to employees, directors, advisors and consultants, including grants of stock options,
warrants, and restricted stock, over the requisite service period based on the grant date fair value of the awards. Advisor and consultant awards are remeasured
each reporting period through vesting. For awards with performance-based vesting criteria, the Company estimates the probability of achievement of the
performance criteria and recognizes compensation expense related to those awards expected to vest. The Company determines the fair value of option awards
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model which uses both historical and current market data to estimate the fair value. This method incorporates various
assumptions such as the risk-free interest rate, expected volatility, expected dividend yield and expected life of the options or warrants. The fair value of the
Company’s restricted stock and restricted stock units is based on the closing market price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identified net assets of businesses acquired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are measured at their respective fair values as of the acquisition date. The Company does not amortize goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives. Intangible assets related to in process research and development ("[PR&D") projects are considered to be indefinite-lived until the completion or
abandonment of the associated R&D efforts. If and when development is complete, which generally occurs if and when regulatory approval to market a
product is obtained, the associated assets would be deemed finite-lived and would then be amortized based on their respective estimated useful lives at that
point in time.

The Company reviews goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets at least annually, or at the time a triggering event is identified for possible
impairment. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for possible impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances
change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit or the IPR&D below its carrying value. The Company tests its goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets each year on December 31. The Company reviews the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
utilizing an income approach model, and, where appropriate, a market value approach is also utilized to supplement the discounted cash flow model. The
Company makes assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows, discount rates, long-term growth rates and market values to determine each reporting
unit’s and IPR&D's estimated fair value. If these estimates or related assumptions change in the future, the Company may be required to record impairment
charges. In accordance with its accounting policy, the Company tested goodwill for impairment as of December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 for its two
reporting units as well as its [IPR&D, and concluded there was no goodwill and IPR&D impairment. As of June 30, 2015, the Company determined that
IPR&D valued at $9.4 million was fully impaired (see Note 8). The Company also tested goodwill for impairment as of June 30, 2015, since the IPR&D
impairment was deemed a triggering event for goodwill impairment testing purposes, and concluded there was no goodwill impairment.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

Definite-lived intangible assets consist of customer lists, manufacturing technology, tradenames, patents and rights. These intangible assets are
amortized on a straight line basis over their respective useful lives. The Company reviews definite-lived intangibles assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. If other events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset that the Company expects to hold and use may not be recoverable, the Company will estimate the undiscounted future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and/or its eventual disposition, and recognize an impairment loss, if any. The impairment loss, if
determined to be necessary, would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. No triggering
events were noted in the current period that would require interim impairment assessment.

Recognizing and Measuring Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in Business Combinations at Fair Value
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The Company accounts for acquired businesses using the purchase method of accounting, which requires that assets acquired and liabilities assumed
be recorded at date of acquisition at their respective fair values. The consolidated financial statements and results of operations reflect an acquired business
after the completion of the acquisition. The fair value of the consideration paid, including contingent consideration, is assigned to the underlying net assets of
the acquired business based on their respective fair values. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. Amounts allocated to IPR&D are included on the balance sheet. Intangible assets, including IPR&D assets upon successful completion
of the project and approval of the product, are amortized on a straight-line basis to amortization expense over the expected life of the asset. Significant
judgments are used in determining the estimated fair values assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and in determining estimates of useful lives
of long-lived assets. Fair value determinations and useful life estimates are based on, among other factors, estimates of expected future net cash flows,
estimates of appropriate discount rates used to present value expected from future net cash flow streams, the timing of approvals for [IPR&D projects and the
timing of related product launch dates, the assessment of each asset’s life cycle, the impact of competitive trends on each asset’s life cycle and other factors.
These judgments can materially impact the estimates used to allocate acquisition date fair values to assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the resulting
timing and amount charged to, or recognized in current and future operating results. For these and other reasons, actual results may vary significantly from
estimated results.

The Company determines the acquisition date fair value of contingent consideration obligations based on a probability-weighted income approach
derived from revenue estimates, post-tax gross profit levels and a probability assessment with respect to the likelihood of achieving contingent obligations
including contingent payments such as milestone obligations, royalty obligations and contract earn-out criteria, where applicable. The fair value measurement
is based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measurement as defined in fair value measurement accounting. The
resulting probability-weighted cash flows are discounted using an appropriate effective annual interest rate. At each reporting date, the contingent
consideration obligation will be revalued to estimated fair value at that time and changes in fair value will be reflected as income or expense in our
consolidated statement of operations. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration obligations may result from changes in discount periods and
rates, changes in the timing and amount of revenue estimates and changes in probability assumptions with respect to the likelihood of achieving the various
contingent payment obligations. Changes in assumptions utilized in our contingent consideration fair value estimates could result in an increase or decrease in
our contingent consideration obligation and a corresponding charge to operating loss or income.

Revenue Recognition

Clinical Services: The Company recognizes revenue for its (i) process development and (ii) clinical manufacturing services based on the terms of
individual contracts.

We recognize revenues when all of the following conditions are met:

» persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
» delivery has occurred or the services have been rendered;

e the fee is fixed or determinable; and

*  collectability is probable.

The Company considers signed contracts as evidence of an arrangement. The Company assesses whether the fee is fixed or determinable based on
the payment terms associated with the transaction and whether the payment terms are subject to refund or adjustment. The Company assesses cash
collectability based on a number of factors, including past collection history with the client and the client's creditworthiness. If the Company determines that
collectability is not reasonably assured, it defers revenue recognition until collectability becomes reasonably assured, which is generally upon receipt of the
cash. The Company's arrangements are generally non-cancellable, though clients typically have the right to terminate their agreement for cause if the
Company materially fails to perform.

Revenues associated with process development services generally contain multiple stages that do not have stand-alone values and are dependent upon
one another, and are recognized as revenue on a completed contract basis. Progress billings collected prior to contract completion are recorded as unearned
revenue until such time the contract is completed, which usually requires formal client acceptance.

Clinical manufacturing services are generally distinct arrangements whereby the Company is paid for time and materials or for fixed monthly amounts.
Revenue is recognized when efforts are expended or contractual terms have been met.
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Some client agreements include multiple elements, comprised of process development and clinical manufacturing services. The Company believes that
process development and clinical manufacturing services each have stand-alone value because these services can be provided separately by other companies.
The Company (1) separates deliverables into separate units of accounting when deliverables are sold in a bundled arrangement and (2) allocates the
arrangement's consideration to each unit in the arrangement based on its relative selling price.

Clinical Services Reimbursements: The Company separately charges the customers for the expenses associated with certain consumable resources
(reimbursable expenses) that are specified in each clinical services contract. On a monthly basis, the Company bills customers for reimbursable expenses and
immediately recognizes these billings as revenue, as the revenue is deemed earned as reimbursable expenses are incurred. For the three months ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, clinical services reimbursements were $0.9 million and $1.1 million, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
clinical services reimbursements were $1.4 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

Processing and Storage Services: The Company recognizes revenue related to the collection and cryopreservation of autologous adult stem cells when
the cryopreservation process is completed which is approximately 24 hours after cells have been collected. Revenue related to advance payments of storage
fees is recognized ratably over the period covered by the advance payments.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development (R&D) expenses include salaries, benefits, and other headcount related costs, clinical trial and related clinical manufacturing
costs, contract and other outside service fees including sponsored research agreements, and facilities and overhead costs. The Company expenses the costs
associated with research and development activities when incurred.

To further drive the Company’s cell therapy initiatives, the Company will continue targeting key governmental agencies, congressional committees and
not-for-profit organizations to contribute funds for the Company’s research and development programs. The Company accounts for such grants as a deduction
to the related expense in research and development operating expenses when earned.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606)." The new revenue recognition standard provides a five-step analysis to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The standard
requires that a company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2017 and will be applied retrospectively to each period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU 2014-09 on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15 Preparation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40), Disclosure of Uncertainties
about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. Under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), continuation of a reporting entity as a
going concern is presumed as the basis for preparing financial statements unless and until the entity's liquidation becomes imminent. Preparation of financial
statements under this presumption is commonly referred to as the going concern basis of accounting. If and when an entity's liquidation becomes imminent,
financial statements should be prepared under the liquidation basis of accounting in accordance with Subtopic 205-30, Presentation of Financial Statements -
Liquidation Basis of Accounting. Even when an entity's liquidation is not imminent, there may be conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the
entity's ability to continue as a going concern. In those situations, financial statements should continue to be prepared under the going concern basis of
accounting, but the provisions in this ASU should be followed to determine whether to disclose information about the relevant conditions and events. The
ASU is effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods thereafter. Early application is permitted.
The Company is currently evaluating the adoption of this ASU and its impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the
balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. This ASU requires retrospective adoption
and will be effective for us beginning in our first quarter of 2017. Early adoption is permitted. We do not expect this adoption to have a material impact on our
financial statements.

Note 3 — Acquisition
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On May 8, 2014, the Company closed (the “Closing”) its acquisition (the “CSC Acquisition”) of California Stem Cell, Inc. ("CSC"), pursuant to the
terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 11, 2014 (the “Merger Agreement”), by and among the Company and its acquisition
subsidiaries (collectively, "Subco"), CSC and Jason Livingston, solely in his capacity as CSC stockholder representative (together with his permitted
successors, the “CSC Representative”). At Closing, Fortis Advisors LLC succeeded to the duties of the CSC Representative pursuant to the Merger
Agreement. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on the Closing date, Subco was merged with CSC (the “Merger”), with Subco surviving the Merger as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. At Closing, Subco changed its legal name to NeoStem Oncology, LLC.

Aggregate Merger Consideration

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, all shares of CSC common stock (“CSC Common Stock”) and CSC preferred stock (“CSC Preferred
Stock”, and collectively with the CSC Common Stock, the “CSC Capital Stock”) outstanding immediately prior to the Closing, and all outstanding
unexercised options to purchase CSC Common Stock (“CSC Options™) (treated as if a net exercise had occurred), were canceled and converted into the right
to receive, in the aggregate (and giving effect to the liquidation preferences accorded to the CSC Preferred Stock):

1) An aggregate of 5,329,593 shares of the Company's common stock (subject to payment of nominal cash in lieu of fractional shares) (the
“Closing Merger Consideration”).

2) if payable after the Closing, certain payments in an amount of up to $90.0 million in the aggregate, payable in shares of the Company's
common stock or cash, in the Company’s sole discretion, in the event of the successful completion of certain milestone events in connection with the
CSC Acquisition (the “Milestone Payments”, and together with the Closing Merger Consideration, the “Merger Consideration”).

The fair value of the net assets acquired in the CSC Acquisition was $19.4 million. The fair value of the consideration paid by the Company was
valued at $33.5 million, resulting in the recognition of goodwill in the amount of $14.1 million. The consideration paid was comprised of equity issued and
milestone payments. The fair value of the equity issued by the Company was valued at $21.6 million. The fair value of the milestone payments was valued at
$11.9 million, and is contingent on the achievement of certain milestones associated with the future development of the acquired programs. Such contingent
consideration has been classified as a liability and will be subject to remeasurement at the end of each reporting period.

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on May 8, 2014 is as follows (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 51
Accounts receivable trade, net 45
Prepaids and other current assets 19
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,041
Other assets 201
Goodwill 14,092
In-Process R&D 34,290
Accounts payable (333)
Accrued liabilities (2,014)
Deferred tax liability (13,901)

Total $ 33,491

The total cost of the acquisition has been allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values at the date
of the acquisition. The final allocation was completed during the measurement period which was one year from the date of acquisition.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The following supplemental table presents unaudited consolidated pro forma financial information as if the closing of the CSC Acquisition had
occurred on January 1, 2014 (in thousands, except per share amounts):
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 Six Months Ended June 30, 2014
(As Reported) (Proforma) (As Reported) (Proforma)
Revenues $ 4,489 $ 4982 § 8,545 § 9,255
Net loss $ (12,770) $ (13,574) $ (26,600) $ (29,097)
Net loss attributable to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. $ (12,605) $ (13,409) $ (26,287) $ (28,784)
Net loss per share attributable to Caladrius Biosciences,
Inc. $ (0.40) $ 0.36) $ (0.88) $ (0.82)

The unaudited supplemental pro forma financial information should not be considered indicative of the results that would have occurred if the CSC
Acquisition had been consummated on January 1, 2014, nor are they indicative of future results.

Note 4 — Available-for-Sale-Securities

The following table is a summary of available-for-sale securities recorded in cash and cash equivalents or marketable securities in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets (in thousands):

June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Certificate of deposits $ — § — § — 3 — $ 2490 § — § — $ 2490
Corporate debt securities 1,065.0 — (1.8) 1,063.2 — — —
Money market funds 11,635.0 — — 11,635.0 12,791.9 — 12,791.9
Municipal debt securities 15,620.5 3.7 — 15,624.2 9,317.3 1.3 — 9,318.6
Total $ 28,3205 §$ 37§ (1.8) $28,322.4 $22,3582 § 13 § —  $22359.5

Estimated fair values of available-for-sale securities are generally based on prices obtained from commercial pricing services. The following table
summarizes the classification of the available-for-sale debt securities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands):

June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,310.7 $ 15,279.4
Marketable securities 3,011.7 7,080.1
Total $ 28,322.4 $ 22,359.5

The following table summarizes our portfolio of available-for-sale debt securities by contractual maturity (in thousands):

June 30, 2015
Estimated Fair
Amortized Cost Value
Less than one year $ 28,320.5 $ 28,3224
Greater than one year — —
Total $ 28,320.5 $ 28,322.4

Note 5 — Deferred Costs

Deferred costs, representing work in process for costs incurred on process development contracts that have not been completed, were $3.0 million
and $2.6 million as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. The Company also has deferred revenue of approximately $4.3 million and $3.9
million of advance billings received as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, related to these contracts.
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Note 6 — Loss Per Share

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company incurred net losses and therefore no common stock equivalents were utilized in
the calculation of loss per share as they are anti-dilutive. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company excluded the following potentially dilutive securities:

June 30,
2015 2014
Stock Options 6,924,459 4,204,270
Warrants 3,518,952 3,623,956
Restricted Shares 281,054 205,231

Note 7 — Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are being measured and reported are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market at the measurement date (exit price). The
Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the following categories:

Level 1 inputs are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access
at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
requires judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.

The Company classifies the fair value of the warrant derivative liabilities as Level 3 inputs. These inputs require material subjectivity because value is
derived through the use of a lattice model that values the derivatives based on probability weighted discounted cash flows. In May 2014, the warrants expired
and the value of the warrant derivative liabilities were written off and recorded in other expenses in our consolidated statement of operations.

The Company classifies the fair value of contingent consideration obligations as Level 3 inputs. The Company has recognized contingent consideration
obligations related to the following:

¢ In October 2011, in connection with the acquisition (the "Amorcyte Acquisition") of Amorcyte, LLC ("Amorcyte"), contingent consideration
obligations were recognized relating to earn out payments equal to 10% of the net sales of the lead product candidate CLBS10 (in the event of and
following the date of first commercial sale of CLBS10, a CD34 therapy), provided that in the event the Company sublicenses CLBS10, the
applicable earn out payment will be equal to 30% of any sublicensing fees, and provided further that the Company will be entitled to recover direct
out-of-pocket clinical development costs not previously paid or reimbursed and any costs, expenses, liabilities and settlement amounts arising out of
claims of patent infringement or otherwise challenging Amorcyte’s right to use intellectual property, by reducing any earn out payments due by 50%
until such costs have been recouped in full (the “Earn Out Payments™). As of June 30, 2015, based on a thorough analysis of the available data from
the PreSERVE AMI Phase 2 clinical study for CLBS10, an updated commercial assessment, and consultation with the Company’s scientific advisory
board and the Science and Technology Committee of the Board of Directors, the Company determined that it will not pursue further development of
CLBS10. As a result, the Amorcyte Acquisition contingent consideration fair value decreased from $5.6 million to $0 as of June 30, 2015, since the
contingent consideration is based solely on future revenues of CLBS10. The change in estimated fair value has been recorded in other income in our
consolidated statement of operations.

* In May 2014, in connection with the CSC Acquisition, contingent consideration obligations were recognized relating to milestone payments of up to
$90.0 million, based on the achievement of certain milestones associated with the future development of the acquired programs. The contingent
consideration fair value increased from $12.8 million as of December 31, 2014 to $13.5 million as of June 30, 2015. The change in estimated fair
value is based on the impact of
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the time progression to reach those milestones as of June 30, 2015, and has been recorded in other expenses in our consolidated statement of

operations.

The fair value of contingent consideration obligations is based on discounted cash flow models using a probability-weighted income approach. The
measurements are based upon unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity based on our own assumptions and experience. The Company
bases the timing to complete the development and approval programs on the current development stage of the product and the inherent difficulties and
uncertainties in developing a product candidate, such as obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals. In determining the probability of regulatory approval
and commercial success, we utilize data regarding similar milestone events from several sources, including industry studies and our own experience. These
fair value measurements represent Level 3 measurements as they are based on significant inputs not observable in the market. Significant judgment is
employed in determining the appropriateness of these assumptions as of the acquisition date and for each subsequent period. Accordingly, changes in
assumptions could have a material impact on the amount of contingent consideration expense we record in any given period.

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value
on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Marketable securities -
available for sale $ — §$ 3,011.7 $ — $ 3,011.7 $ — $ 7,080.0 $ — $ 7,080.0

— $ 3,011.7 $ — § 3,011.7 $ — § 7,0800 $ — $ 7,080.0
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ — 3 —  $13,460.0 $ 13,460.0 $ — 3 — $18260.0 $ 18,260.0

— 5 — $13,460.0 $ 13,460.0 $ — S — $18,260.0 $ 18,260.0

There were no transfers of financial instruments to or from Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the periods presented. For those financial instruments with significant
Level 3 inputs, the following table summarizes the activity for the six months ended June 30, 2015 by type of instrument (in thousands):

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2015

Contingent
Consideration Total
Beginning liability balance $ 18,260.0 $ 18,260.0
Change in fair value recorded in operations (4,800.0) (4,800.0)
Ending liability balance $ 13,460.0 $ 13,460.0

Some of the Company’s financial instruments are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis, but are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value
due to their liquid or short-term nature, such as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable. Our long-term debt and notes payable
are carried at cost and approximate fair value due to their variable or fixed interest rates, which are consistent with the interest rates in the market.

Note 8 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company's goodwill was $25.2 million as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

The Company's intangible assets and related accumulated amortization as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 consisted of the following (in
thousands):
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Customer list
Manufacturing technology
Tradename

In process R&D

Patent rights

Total Intangible Assets

June 30, 2015 December 31,2014
Accumulated Accumulated
Useful Life Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
10 years 1,000.0 $ (445.1) $ 5549 § 1,000.0 $ 395.1) $ 604.9
10 years 3,900.0 (1,735.9) 2,164.1 3,900.0 (1,540.9) 2,359.1
10 years 800.0 (356.1) 443.9 800.0 (316.1) 483.9
Indefinite 34,290.0 — 34,290.0 43,690.0 — 43,690.0
19 years 669.0 (264.1) 404.9 669.0 (246.5) 422.5
40,659.0 $ (2,801.2) $ 37,8578 § 50,059.0 $ (2,498.6) $§ 47,560.4

The Company’s in process research and development ("[PR&D") programs were acquired in the Amorcyte Acquisition (CD34 technology) and CSC
Acquisition (tumor cell/dendritic cell technology). With regards to the CD34 technology, the Company determined as of June 30, 2015, based on a thorough
analysis of the available data from the PreSERVE AMI Phase 2 clinical study, an updated commercial assessment, and consultation with the Company’s
scientific advisory board and the Science and Technology Committee of the Board of Directors, that it will not pursue further development of CLBS10 for the
acute myocardial infarction indication upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE AMI Phase 2 clinical study. However, it intends to explore other potential
and more commercially viable indications of chronic heart failure and/or critical limb ischemia for its CD34 cell technology platform. These other indications
are early stage opportunities, and would require external funding and/or partnerships to proceed to the next step in clinical development. As a result, and
given the early stage and funding constraints of these other potential opportunities, the Company determined that IPR&D valued at $9.4 million was fully

impaired as of June 30, 2015.

Total intangible amortization expense was classified in the operating expense categories for the periods included below as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
Cost of revenue 747 $ 787 $ 1539 § 158.4
Research and development 31.6 27.6 58.7 54.2
Selling, general and administrative 45.0 45.0 90.0 90.0
Total 1513  $ 1513  § 3026 $ 302.6
Estimated intangible amortization expense on an annual basis for the succeeding five years is as follows (in thousands):
2015 302.6
2016 605.2
2017 605.2
2018 605.2
2019 605.2
Thereafter 35,1344
Total 37,857.8

Note 9 — Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
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June 30, 2015 December 31,2014
Salaries, employee benefits and related taxes $ 3459.1 $ 2,807.2
Professional fees 735.9 495.4
California Institute of Regenerative Medicine advance funding - current 600.0 —
Other 2,383.0 1,020.3
Total $ 7,178.0 $ 4,322.9

Note 10 — Debt
Notes Payable

As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company had notes payable of approximately $2.1 million and $1.6 million, respectively. The
notes relate to certain insurance policies and equipment financings, require monthly payments, and mature within one to three years.

Long-Term Debt

On September 26, 2014, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement (the “Loan and Security Agreement”) with Oxford Finance LLC
(together with its successors and assigns, the “Lender”) pursuant to which the Lender has agreed to lend the Company up to $20.0 million. Upon entering into
the Loan and Security Agreement, the Lender disbursed $15.0 million (“Term Loan A”). Under the terms of the Loan and Security Agreement, during the
Second Draw Period (as defined below), the Company may, subject to certain conditions, borrow from Lender an additional $5.0 million (“Term Loan B”,
together with Term Loan A, the “Term Loans”). The “Second Draw Period” is the period of time: (a) commencing on the date that Lender receives evidence
in a form and substance satisfactory to Lender that the Company has entered into a strategic arrangement with respect to the Company’s CLBS10 product
candidate for ST segment elevation myocardial infarction and receives an upfront payment of not less than $10.0 million in connection therewith, and (b)
ending on the earlier of September 19, 2015 or the occurrence of an event of default under the Term Loans. After repayment of all outstanding amounts due
under two loans from TD Bank, N.A. in the amount of approximately $3.1 million, and deductions for debt offering/issuance costs and interim period interest,
the net proceeds from Term Loan A were $11.7 million. The debt offering/issuance costs have been recorded as debt issuance costs in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheet, and will be amortized to interest expense throughout the life of the Term Loans using the effective interest rate method. The
proceeds from the Term Loans may be used to satisfy the Company’s future working capital needs, including the development of its cell therapy product
candidates.

The Company has been making interest-only payments on the outstanding amount of Term Loans on a monthly basis at a rate of 8.50% per annum.
On April 29, 2015, with the Company's announcement that the first patient in the Intus Study had been randomized, the interest-only payment period on Term
Loan A was extended from October 1, 2015 to April 1, 2016, which was in accordance with the Loan and Security Agreement. Commencing on April 1,
2016, the Company will make 30 consecutive monthly payments of principal and interest. The Term Loans mature on September 1, 2018. At its option, the
Company may prepay all amounts owed under the Loan and Security Agreement (including all accrued and unpaid interest), subject to a prepayment fee that
is determined based on the date the loan is prepaid. The Company is also required to pay Lender a final payment fee equal to 8% of the Term Loan A and
Term Loan B (if disbursed). The final payment fee will be amortized to interest expense throughout the life of the Term Loans using the effective interest rate
method. The Company paid a facility fee in the amount of $100,000 in connection with Term Loan A.

Under the Loan and Security Agreement and a related mortgage, the Company granted to Lender a security interest in all of the Company’s real
property and personal property now owned or hereafter acquired, excluding intellectual property, and certain other assets and exemptions. The Company also
entered into a Mortgage and Absolute Assignment of Leases and Rents (the "Mortgage"). The Company also granted Lender a security interest in the shares
of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Loan and Security Agreement restricts the ability of the Company to: (a) convey, lease, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose
of any part of its business or property; and (b) incur any additional indebtedness. The Loan and Security Agreement provides for standard indemnification of
Lender and contains representations, warranties and certain covenants of the Company. Upon the occurrence of an event of default by the Company under the
Loan and Security Agreement, Lender will have customary acceleration, collection and foreclosure remedies. There are no financial covenants associated to
the Loan and Security Agreement. As of June 30, 2015, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the Loan and Security Agreement.

Estimated future principal payments, interest, and fees due under the Loan and Security Agreement, assuming the Company does not draw down on the
Term Loan B, are as follows:
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Years Ending December 31, (in millions)

2015 $ 0.6
2016 53
2017 6.7
2018 6.2
Total $ 18.8

During the six months ended June 30, 2015, the Company recognized $0.6 million of interest expense related to the Loan and Security Agreement.

Note 11 — Shareholders' Equity

Equity Issuances

June 2015 Public Offering

In June 2015, the Company completed an underwritten offering of 12.5 million shares of the Company's common stock, at a public offering price of
$2.00 per share. The underwriters also exercised their entire over-allotment option of 1.875 million shares. The Company received gross proceeds of $28.8
million, before deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses payable by the Company.

Aspire Purchase Agreements

In May 2015, the Company entered into a common stock purchase agreement (the "2015 Purchase Agreement") with Aspire Capital Fund, LLC, an
Illinois limited liability company (“Aspire Capital), which provides that, subject to certain terms and conditions, Aspire Capital is committed to purchase up
to an aggregate of $30 million of shares (limited to a maximum of approximately 8.0 million shares, unless stockholder approval is obtained) of the
Company's common stock over a 24-month term. As consideration for entering into the 2015 Purchase Agreement, the Company issued 364,837 shares of its
common stock to Aspire Capital. As of June 30, 2015, the full amount was available to the Company under the 2015 Purchase Agreement. As of June 30,
2015, subject to the terms and conditions of the 2015 Purchase Agreement, we could sell to Aspire Capital the lesser of (i) $30 million of Common Stock or
(i) the dollar value of approximately 8.0 million shares of Common Stock based on the market price of the Common Stock at the time of such sale as
determined under the 2015 Purchase Agreement.

In March 2014, the Company entered into a common stock purchase agreement (the “2014 Purchase Agreement”) with Aspire Capital, which provides
that, subject to certain terms and conditions, Aspire Capital is committed to purchase up to an aggregate of $30.0 million worth of shares (limited to a
maximum of approximately 5.7 million shares, unless shareholder approval is obtained) of the Company’s common stock over the 24-month term. As
consideration for entering into the 2014 Purchase Agreement, the Company issued 150,000 shares of its common stock to Aspire Capital. During the six
months ended June 30, 2015, the Company issued 3.0 million shares of common stock under the provisions of the 2014 Purchase Agreement with Aspire for
gross proceeds of approximately $9.4 million. As of June 30, 2015, subject to the terms and conditions of the 2014 Purchase Agreement, we could sell to
Aspire Capital the lesser of (i) $9.7 million of Common Stock or (ii) the dollar value of approximately 0.6 million shares of Common Stock based on the
market price of the Common Stock at the time of such sale as determined under the 2014 Purchase Agreement.

At the Company’s discretion, it may present Aspire Capital with purchase notices under the 2015 Purchase Agreement or the 2014 Purchase Agreement
(collectively, the "Purchase Agreements") from time to time to purchase the Company’s common stock, provided certain price and other requirements are
met. The purchase price for the shares of stock is based upon one of two formulas set forth in the Purchase Agreements depending on the type of purchase
notice the Company submits to Aspire Capital, and is based on market prices of the Company’s common stock (in the case of regular purchases) or a discount
of 5% applied to volume weighted average prices (in the case of VWAP purchases), in each case as determined by parameters defined in the Purchase
Agreements.

Stock Options and Warrants

The following table summarizes the activity for stock options and warrants for the six months ended June 30, 2015:
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Stock Options Warrants
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Aggregate Remaining Aggregate
Weighted Average Contractual Term Intrinsic Value (In Weighted Average Contractual Term Intrinsic Value (In
Shares Exercise Price (Years) Thousands) Shares Exercise Price (Years) Thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 4,427,234 $ 9.19 693 § 28.6 3,550,956 $ 14.12 212§ 1.0
Changes during the period:
Granted 2,903,188 $ 331 — $ —
Exercised — 8 — — 3 =
Forfeited (103,513)  $ 6.52 — $ —
Expired (302,450) $ 7.19 (32,004) $ 19.37
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 6,924,459 $ 6.86 777 8 — 3,518952  § 14.07 1.65 $ —
Vested at June 30, 2015 or expected to
vest in the future 6,616,000 $ 7.00 7.69 $ — 3,518,952 $ 14.07 1.65 $ —
Vested at June 30, 2015 4,726,752 $ 8.00 712 $ — 3,516,452 $ 14.07 1.64 $
Restricted Stock

During the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Company issued restricted stock for services as follows (in thousands, except share data):

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014
Number of Restricted Stock Issued 1,276,053 456,709
Value of Restricted Stock Issued $ 4,0295 $ 3,389.7

The weighted average estimated fair value of restricted stock issued for services in the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $3.16 and $7.42 per
share, respectively. The fair value of the restricted stock was determined using the Company’s closing stock price on the date of issuance.

Note 12 — Share-Based Compensation

Share-based Compensation

We utilize share-based compensation in the form of stock options, warrants and restricted stock. The following table summarizes the components of
share-based compensation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Cost of goods sold $ 3782 $ 985 § 4951 $ 236.6
Research and development 1,104.2 371.6 1,526.9 848.4
Selling, general and administrative 2,933.9 1,289.6 6,110.1 4,568.5
Total share-based compensation expense $ 44163  $ 1,759.7  $ 8,132.1 §$ 5,653.5

Total compensation cost related to nonvested awards not yet recognized and the weighted-average periods over which the awards are expected to be
recognized at June 30, 2015 were as follows (in thousands):

Stock Options Warrants Restricted Stock
Unrecognized compensation cost $ 49796 $ 1.0 $ 401.2
Expected weighted-average period in years of compensation cost to be recognized 3.29 0.05 2.93
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Total fair value of shares vested and the weighted average estimated fair values of shares granted for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were
as follows (in thousands):

Stock Options Warrants
Six Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Total fair value of shares vested $ 49153 $ 2,5522 % 140 $ 15.0
Weighted average estimated fair value of shares granted  § 2,17 $ 492 $ — 3 —

Valuation Assumptions

The fair value of stock options and warrants at the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The expected volatility is
based upon historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The expected term for the options is based upon observation of actual time elapsed between date of
grant and exercise of options for all employees. The expected term for the warrants is based upon the contractual term of the warrants.

Note 13 — Research Funding
California Institute of Regenerative Medicine

In June 2015, the California Institute of Regenerative Medicine ("CIRM") granted the Company a $17.7 million award (the "Award") to fund a
significant portion of its Phase 3 Intus study for treating patients with recurrent Stage III or Stage IV metastatic melanoma. The Award provides for a $3.0
million project initiation payment, and $14.7 million in future operational milestone payments, and is subject to a dollar-for-dollar match funding by the
Company. On June 30, 2015, the Company received the $3.0 million project initiation payment from CIRM, which will be amortized over the estimated
Award period as a reduction to the related research and development expenses. Future operational milestone payments will be recorded as a reduction to
research and development expenses when the milestone is achieved and payment is received or probable. The State of California has the right to receive,
subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement between the Company and CIRM, future payments from the Company, or its collaborators, from sales of
a commercial product resulting from research and development efforts supported by the grant, of up to nine times of the Award.

Note 14 — Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had approximately $177.2 million of Federal net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) available to offset future
taxable income expiring from 2025 through 2033. In accordance with Section 382 of the Internal Revenue code, the usage of the Company’s NOLs could be
limited in the event of a change in ownership. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during
the period when those temporary differences become deductible. If a change of ownership did occur there would be an annual limitation on the usage of the
Company’s losses which are available through 2032.

In assessing the ability to realize deferred tax assets, including the NOLs, the Company assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate
if sufficient future taxable income will be generated to utilize its existing deferred tax assets. Based on its assessment, the Company has provided a full
valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets as their future utilization remains uncertain at this time.

Deferred tax liabilities were $14.5 million and $18.2 million as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, and relate to the taxable
temporary differences on (i) the goodwill recognized in the PCT acquisition in 2011, (ii) the in-process R&D intangible asset recognized in the Amorcyte
Acquisition in 2011, and (iii) the IPR&D intangible asset recognized in the CSC Acquisition in 2014. The taxable temporary difference associated with the
goodwill, which is tax deductible and will be amortized over 15 years, will continue to increase the deferred tax liability balance over the amortization period,
with an associated charge to the tax provision in each period. The deferred tax liabilities will only reverse when these indefinite-lived assets are sold,
impaired, or reclassified from an indefinite-lived asset to a finite-lived asset. As of June 30, 2015, IPR&D recognized in the Amorcyte Acquisition and valued
at $9.4 million was fully impaired (see Note 8), resulting in the reversal of the associated deferred tax liability of $3.7 million.

As of June 30, 2015, management does not believe the Company has any material uncertain tax positions that would require it to measure and reflect the
potential lack of sustainability of a position on audit in its financial statements. The Company will
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continue to evaluate its uncertain tax positions in future periods to determine if measurement and recognition in its financial statements is necessary. The
Company does not believe there will be any material changes in its unrecognized tax positions over the next year.

The Company's federal tax returns are currently being audited for the years 2012 and 2013. For years prior to 2011 the federal statute of limitations is
closed for assessing tax. The Company’s state tax returns remain open to examination for a period of 3 to 4 years from date of filing. The Company ceased
doing business in China in 2012. After 2012, the Company had no foreign tax filing obligations. The returns filed for 2012 and prior are subject to
examination for 5 years.

Note 15 — Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

We entered into an assignment agreement with an unaffiliated third party, effective February 19, 2015, for general office space located in Basking Ridge, New
Jersey. This property is used as the Company's corporate headquarters. The space is approximately 18,000 rentable square feet. Pursuant to the agreement, we
are not obligated to make any payments for the space until January 2016.The base monthly rent during the period ending January 31, 2016 is currently
$25,000 and the lease term ends July 31, 2020. In addition, there are two (2) five (5) year renewal options. In connection with the assumption of the lease, the
third party (a) conveyed its rights in various scheduled furniture and equipment and (b) paid the Company approximately $580,000 which will offset the
future rental payments to be paid by Caladrius until mid-2016. The amount paid to the Company included a security deposit of approximately $115,000.

The Company leases offices, of which certain have escalation clauses and renewal options, and also leases equipment under certain noncancelable
operating leases that expire from time to time through 2021. In January 2014, the Company signed a new lease for a larger space at its New York office
located at 420 Lexington Avenue, New York, NY 10170. The new lease extends through 2018. In connection with the CSC Acquisition, the Company
assumed a facility lease in Irvine, California, with a termination at the end of 2017. We recently signed an amendment expanding our office space in Irvine by
4,000 square feet, and extending the term through 2021.

A summary of future minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining terms in excess of one year as of June 30,
2015 are as follows (in thousands):

Years ended Operating Leases

2015 $ 985.7
2016 2,062.0
2017 1,863.8
2018 1,034.8
2019 and thereafter 1,949.6
Total minimum lease payments $ 7,895.9

Expense incurred under operating leases was approximately $0.4 million and $0.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Expense incurred under operating leases was approximately $0.8 million and $0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

Contingencies
Under license agreements with third parties the Company is typically required to pay maintenance fees, make milestone payments and/or pay other fees
and expenses and pay royalties upon commercialization of products. The Company also sponsors research at various academic institutions, which research
agreements generally provide us with an option to license new technology discovered during the course of the sponsored research.
From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of

business. While the outcome of pending claims cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company does not believe that the outcome of any pending claims will
have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or operating results.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various
factors, including those set forth under “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” herein and under “Risk Factors” in our 2014 Form 10-K.
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this
Quarterly Report and in our 2014 Form 10-K.

Overview

Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (“we,” “us”, "our", “Caladrius” or the “Company”) is among the first of a new breed of immunotherapy companies with
proven expertise and unique experience in cell process optimization, development, and manufacturing. Caladrius is a company combining a leading cell
therapy service provider with a development pipeline including late-stage clinical programs based on proprietary platform technology for immuno-oncology,
as well as additional platform technologies for ischemic repair and immunomodulation. This integrated approach supports the industry in bringing significant
life-improving medical treatments to market.

Our most advanced clinical program is based on our tumor cell/dendritic cell technology. It is focused on the development of an innovative cancer
treatment (i.e., vaccine) that is designed to target the cells responsible for tumor growth and metastasis, known as cancer- or tumor-initiating cells ("CICs"),
using purified CICs from a patient’s own tumor as an antigen source to induce or enhance an anti-tumor immune response in the patient. CLBS20, our lead
product candidate based on this platform technology, targets malignant melanoma. CLBS20 is being studied in patients with recurrent Stage III or Stage IV
metastatic melanoma. The program has been granted Fast Track and Orphan designation by the Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA") as well as
Advanced Therapeutic Medicinal Product classification by the European Medicines Agency (the "EMA"). The protocol for the Phase 3 study, known as the
Intus study, is the subject of a Special Protocol Assessment ("SPA") by the FDA. Our SPA letter states that our Phase 3 clinical trial is adequately designed to
provide the necessary data that, depending on outcome, could support a Biologics License Application ("BLA") seeking marketing approval of CLBS20. The
Intus Study is the subject of a $17.7 million grant from the California Institute for Regenerative Medicine, announced in May 2015. The study protocol calls
for randomizing 250 patients. Patient screening began in the first quarter of 2015 and randomization of the first patient was announced in April 2015. An
interim analysis is planned after 99 trial events (i.e., deaths) and is expected to occur during the fourth quarter of 2017. We are also evaluating other clinical
indications for which we may advance this program, including ovarian, liver, colon, kidney, brain and lung cancers.

We are also developing therapies that are designed to utilize CD34 cells to regenerate tissue impacted by ischemia. Ischemia occurs when the supply
of oxygenated blood in the body is restricted, causing local tissue distress and death. Ischemia can lead to conditions such as chronic heart failure ("CHF")
and critical limb ischemia ("CLI"). We seek to improve oxygen delivery to affected tissues through the development and formation of new blood vessels. The
ischemic repair program is supported by data from the clinical study of CLBS10, a product candidate designed to prevent heart failure and major adverse
cardiac events following a severe heart attack (known as an ST segment elevation myocardial infarction ("STEMI")). After a thorough review, the Company
has set the future direction for its ischemic repair program. Based on an analysis of the available Phase 2 data from the PreSERVE-AMI trial, an updated
commercial assessment considering all major potential relevant cardiovascular indications and consultation with the Company’s new cardiovascular scientific
advisory board and the Science and Technology Committee of the Board of Directors, Caladrius has decided that it will not pursue further development of
CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-AMI Phase 2 clinical study. However, we believe that the positive suggestion of safety and therapeutic
activity seen to date in the CLBS10 study supports the underlying platform technology and enables the Company’s exploration of what we believe to be more
commercially viable indications of chronic heart failure (CLBS14) and/or critical limb ischemia (CLBS12) as targets for further development. In the case of
CLI, we are actively exploring a program to develop CLBS12 in Japan under Japan’s regenerative medicine law. Japan’s regenerative medicine law enables
an expedited path to conditional approval for regenerative medicine products that show sufficient safety evidence and signals of efficacy in a phase 2 study.
This program is supported by three previous studies of autologous CD34 cells in no-option CLI patients. These other indications are early stage opportunities,
and would require external funding and/or partnerships to proceed to the next step in clinical development.

We are also developing a therapy that is designed to utilize Regulatory T Cells ("Tregs") to treat diseases caused by imbalances in an individual's
immune system. This novel approach seeks to restore immune balance by enhancing Treg cell number and function. Tregs are a natural part of the human
immune system and regulate the activity of T effector cells, the cells that are responsible for protecting the body from viruses and other foreign antigens.
When Tregs function properly, only harmful foreign
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materials are attacked by T effector cells. In autoimmune disease, it is thought that deficient Treg activity permits the T effector cells to attack the body's own
tissues. We have received FDA concurrence that we may proceed to a Phase 2 study (the "Trutina study") of CLBS03, a Treg-based therapeutic being
developed to treat type 1 diabetes mellitus ("T1DM") in adolescents. We are evaluating other clinical indications into which we may advance this program,
including steroid-resistant asthma, multiple sclerosis, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, inflammatory bowel disease, graft versus host disease, lupus,
and rheumatoid arthritis.

We believe that cell-based therapies have the potential to create a paradigm change in the treatment for a variety of diseases and conditions and we
are evaluating other programs that we view as holding particular promise, including an aesthetics program for a topical skin application and a very small
embryonic like ("VSEL™") stem cell program for the treatment of retinal degeneration, bone restoration and wound healing. We have also received recent
grants to support early stage research for retinal disease using human-induced pluripotent stem cells.

Through our wholly owned subsidiary, PCT, LLC, a Caladrius company ("PCT"), we are recognized as a world industry leader in providing high-
quality innovative and reliable manufacturing capabilities and engineering solutions (e.g., process and assay development, optimization and automation) in
the development of cell-based therapies. We currently operate three facilities qualified under Good Manufacturing Practices ("cGMPs") in Allendale, NJ,
Mountain View, CA and Irvine, CA, and are positioned to expand our capacity both in the United States and internationally, as needed. In addition to
leveraging this core expertise in the development of our own products, we partner opportunistically with other industry leaders who recognize our unique
ability to significantly improve their manufacturing processes and supply clinical and commercial material.

We look forward to further advancement of our cell-based therapies to the market and to helping patients suffering from life-threatening medical
conditions. Coupling our development expertise with our strong process development and manufacturing capability, we believe the stage is set for us to
realize meaningful clinical development of our own proprietary platform technologies and manufacturing advancements, further positioning Caladrius as a
leader in the immuno-oncology field and the cell therapy industry.

Results of Operations
Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2015 Compared to Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

Net loss for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was approximately $17.2 million compared to $12.8 million for the three months ended June 30,
2014. Net loss for the six months ended June 30, 2015 was approximately $36.4 million compared to $26.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Net loss for both the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 included the impact of the Company's decision to no longer pursue further
development of CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-AMI Phase 2 clinical study. Based on this decision, the Company determined that in
process research and development ("IPR&D") valued at $9.4 million was fully impaired (recorded in impairment of intangible assets in our consolidated
statement of operations), and the associated deferred tax liability of $3.7 million was reversed (recorded in benefit from income taxes in our consolidated
statement of operations). In addition, the fair value of contingent consideration associated with earn out payments on CLBS10 future revenues was reduced
from $5.6 million to $0 as of June 30, 2015 (recorded in other income in our consolidated statement of operations). The overall net impact for these changes
was a $20,000 increase in net loss.

Revenues

For the three months ended June 30, 2015, total revenues were approximately $5.9 million compared to $4.5 million for the three months ended June 30,
2014, representing an increase of $1.4 million, or 31%. Revenues were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014
Clinical Services $ 4,017.6 $ 2,493.9
Clinical Services Reimbursables 856.1 1,099.3
Processing and Storage Services 993.3 895.7
$ 5867.0 $ 4,488.9

*  Clinical Services were approximately $4.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $2.5 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2014, representing an increase of approximately $1.5 million or 61%. The increase was
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primarily due to $0.8 million of higher process development revenue and $0.7 million of higher clinical manufacturing revenue.

o Process Development Revenue - Process development revenues were approximately $1.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015
compared to $1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014. The increase was impacted by the net incremental recognition of $0.9
million of previously deferred process development revenue during the three months ended June 30, 2015. In accordance with our revenue
recognition policy, process development revenue is recognized upon contract completion (i.e., when the services under a particular contract
are completed). As a result, unearned revenue relating to process development contracts decreased from $4.5 million as of March 31, 2015 to
$3.6 million as of June 30, 2015. Process development revenue will continue to fluctuate from period to period as a result of our process
development revenue recognition policy, and the timing upon when services for a contract are completed.

o Clinical Manufacturing Revenue - Clinical manufacturing revenues were approximately $2.2 million for the three months ended June 30,
2015 compared to $1.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014. The increase is primarily due to an increase in the number of
patients our customers have enrolled and treated in clinical trials, which number varies depending on the stage of the clinical trial.

*  Clinical Services Reimbursables were approximately $0.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $1.1 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2014, representing a decrease of approximately $0.2 million or 22%. Generally, clinical services reimbursables correlate with
clinical services revenues. However, differences in the cost of supplies to be reimbursed can vary greatly from contract to contract based on the cost of
supplies needed for each client's manufacturing and development process and may impact this correlation. In addition, our terms for billing
reimbursable expenses do not include a significant mark-up in the acquisition cost of such consumables, and as a result, changes in this revenue
category have little impact on our gross profit and net loss.

»  Processing and Storage Services were approximately $1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $0.9 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of approximately $0.1 million or 11%. The increase was primarily due to higher volume for our

oncology stem cell processing services.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, total revenues were approximately $9.0 million compared to $8.5 million for the six months ended June 30,
2014, representing an increase of $0.5 million, or 6%. Revenues were comprised of the following (in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014
Clinical Services $ 5,480.6 $ 5,060.9
Clinical Services Reimbursables 1,384.6 1,847.3
Processing and Storage Services 2,054.1 1,636.3
Other 120.0 —
$ 9,039.2 $ 8,544.5

*  Clinical Services were approximately $5.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $5.1 million for the six months ended June 30,
2014, representing an increase of approximately $0.4 million or 8%. The increase was primarily due to $0.2 million of higher process development
revenue and $0.2 million of higher clinical manufacturing revenue.

o Process Development Revenue - Process development revenues were approximately $2.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015
compared to $1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. The increase was partially offset by the net incremental deferral of $0.4
million in process development revenue during the six months ended June 30, 2015. In accordance with our revenue recognition policy,
process development revenue is recognized upon contract completion (i.e., when the services under a particular contract are completed). As a
result, unearned revenue relating to process development contracts increased from $3.2 million as of December 31, 2014 to $3.6 million as of
June 30, 2015 Process development revenue will continue to fluctuate from period to period as a result of our process development revenue
recognition policy, and the timing upon when services for a contract are completed.
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o Clinical Manufacturing Revenue - Clinical manufacturing revenues were approximately $3.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015
compared to $3.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. The increase is primarily due to an increase in the number of patients our
customers have enrolled and treated in clinical trials, which number varies depending on the stage of the clinical trial.

Clinical Services Reimbursables were approximately $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $1.8 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2014, representing a decrease of approximately $0.5 million or 25%. Generally, clinical services reimbursables correlate with clinical
services revenues. However, differences in the cost of supplies to be reimbursed can vary greatly from contract to contract based on the cost of
supplies needed for each client's manufacturing and development process and may impact this correlation. In addition, our terms for billing
reimbursable expenses do not include a significant mark-up in the acquisition cost of such consumables, and as a result, changes in this revenue
category have little impact on our gross profit and net loss.

Processing and Storage Services were approximately $2.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $1.6 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of approximately $0.4 million or 26%. The increase was primarily due to higher volume for our
oncology stem cell processing services.

For the three months ended June 30, 2015, operating costs and expenses totaled $31.5 million compared to $16.9 million for the three months ended

June 30, 2014, representing an increase of $14.6 million or 86.4%. Operating costs and expenses were comprised of the following:

Cost of revenues were approximately $5.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $3.7 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2014, representing an increase of $2.1 million or 58%. Overall, gross profit for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was $0.1 million or
1%, compared to gross profit for the three months ended June 30, 2014 of $0.8 million or 18%. Gross profit percentages generally will
increase/decrease as Clinical Service revenue increases/decreases. However, gross profit percentages will also fluctuate from period to period due to
the mix of service and reimbursable revenues and costs.

Research and development expenses were approximately $7.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $5.8 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of approximately $1.8 million, or 31%.

o Immuno-oncology - Immuno-oncology expenses, which are primarily associated with the Intus Phase 3 clinical trial for our lead
immunotherapy product candidate CLBS20, were $3.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of $1.2
million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2014. The targeted cancer immunotherapy program was acquired in the acquisition
(the "CSC Acquisition") of California Stem Cell, Inc. ("CSC") in May 2014.

o Ischemic Repair - Ischemic repair expenses were $1.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of
approximately $0.4 million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2014. The increase is primarily due to expenses associated with a
potential critical limb ischemia development program in Japan, which were partially offset by lower costs associated with the PreServe AMI
Phase 2 study for CLBS10.

o Immune Modulation - Immune modulation expenses, including our efforts focused on initiating our Phase 2 study of CLBS03 in type 1
diabetes, were $1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of $0.6 million compared to the three months
ended June 30, 2014.

o Other - Other research and development expenses were $1.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of
approximately $0.8 million compared to the three months ended June 30, 2014. The increase was primarily due to higher equity-based
compensation expenses during the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to the prior year.

Impairment of intangible assets for the three months ended June 30, 2015 relate to the full impairment of IPR&D associated with CLBS10 valued at

$9.4 million, based on the Company's decision that it will not pursue further development of CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-
AMI Phase 2 clinical study.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses were approximately $8.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $7.4 million for
the three months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of approximately $1.3 million, or 17%. Equity-based compensation included in
selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was approximately $2.9 million, compared to approximately
$1.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of $1.6 million. Equity-based compensation expense is expected to
fluctuate in future quarters as equity-linked instruments are used to compensate employees, consultants and other service providers. Non-equity-
based general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2015 were approximately $5.8 million, compared to approximately
$6.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014, representing a decrease of $0.3 million. The decrease was primarily related to lower strategic
and corporate development activities during the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to the prior year period, which included efforts
associated with the CSC Acquisition in May 2014.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, operating costs and expenses totaled $52.8 million compared to $34.5 million for the six months ended

June 30, 2014, representing an increase of $18.3 million or 53%. Operating costs and expenses were comprised of the following:

Cost of revenues were approximately $9.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $7.5 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2014, representing an increase of $1.7 million or 22%. Overall, negative gross profit for the six months ended June 30, 2015 was $0.1
million or 1%, compared to gross profit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 of $1.0 million or 12%. Gross profit percentages generally will
increase/decrease as Clinical Service revenue increases/decreases. However, gross profit percentages will also fluctuate from period to period due to
the mix of service and reimbursable revenues and costs.

Research and development expenses were approximately $14.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $10.6 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of approximately $3.8 million, or 36%.

o Immuno-oncology - Immuno-oncology expenses, which are primarily associated with the Intus Phase 3 clinical trial for our lead
immunotherapy product candidate CLBS20, were $5.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of $3.1
million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2014. The targeted cancer immunotherapy program was acquired in the CSC
Acquisition in May 2014.

o Ischemic Repair - Ischemic repair expenses were $4.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of
approximately $0.7 million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2014. The increase is primarily due to expenses associated with a
potential critical limb ischemia development program in Japan, which were partially offset by lower costs associated with the PreServe AMI
Phase 2 study for CLBS10.

o Immune Modulation - Immune modulation expenses, including our efforts focused on initiating our Phase 2 study of CLBS03 in type 1
diabetes, were $2.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, representing a decrease of $0.6 million compared to the six months
ended June 30, 2014.

o Other - Other research and development expenses were $2.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, representing an increase of
approximately $0.6 million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2014. The increase was due to higher equity-based compensation
expense during the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to the prior year.

Impairment of intangible assets for the six months ended June 30, 2015 relate to the full impairment of IPR&D associated with CLBS10 valued at
$9.4 million, based on the Company's decision that it will not pursue further development of CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-
AMI Phase 2 clinical study.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were approximately $19.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $16.4 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of approximately $3.4 million, or 21%. Equity-based compensation included in
selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2015 was approximately $6.1 million, compared to approximately
$4.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of $1.5 million. Equity-based compensation expense is expected to
fluctuate in future quarters as equity-linked instruments are used to compensate employees, consultants and other service providers. Non-equity-
based general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2015 were approximately $13.7 million, compared to approximately
$11.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014, representing an increase of $1.9 million. The increase was primarily related to expenses
associated with executive management changes in the first quarter of 2015, including new hire compensation-related costs as well as separation-
related costs during the six months
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ended June 30, 2015. In addition, the increase reflects additional operating activities in connection with the CSC Acquisition in May 2014.

Historically, to minimize our use of cash, we have used a variety of equity and equity-linked instruments to compensate employees, consultants and
other service providers. The use of these instruments has resulted in charges to the results of operations, which have been significant in the past.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income, net for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, was $5.4 million and $4.8 million, respectively, compared with other expense,
net, of $186,000 and $375,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, and primarily relates to changes in the estimated fair value of our contingent
consideration liabilities. The three and six months ended June 30, 2015 amounts include the revaluation of the Amorcyte Acquisition-related contingent
consideration related to CLBS10 from $5.6 million to $0. As of June 30, 2015, based on an analysis of the available Phase 2 data from the PreSERVE-AMI
trial, an updated commercial assessment considering all major potential relevant cardiovascular indications and consultation with the Company’s new
cardiovascular scientific advisory board and the Science and Technology Committee of the Board of Directors, the Company has decided that it will not
pursue further development of CLBS10 upon completion of the ongoing PreSERVE-AMI Phase 2 clinical study.

Interest expense was $547,000 and $1,098,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, respectively, compared with $106,000 and
$200,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014. The increase was primarily due to interest expense associated with the $15.0 million loan from

Oxford Finance LLC in September 2014.

Provision for Income Taxes

The benefit from income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 relates primarily to the reversal of the deferred tax liability of $3.7
million associated with the impairment of the IPR&D intangible asset valued at $9.4 million, which was partially offset by the taxable temporary differences
on the goodwill recognized in the PCT acquisition in 2011, which is being amortized over 15 years for tax purposes. A tax provision will continue to be
recognized each period over the amortization period, and will only reverse when the goodwill is eliminated through a sale, impairment, or reclassification
from an indefinite-lived asset to a finite-lived asset.

Analysis of Liquidity and Capital Resources

At June 30, 2015 we had cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities of approximately $39.2 million, working capital of approximately
$31.1 million, and stockholders’ equity of approximately $66.4 million.

During the six months ended June 30, 2015, we met our immediate cash requirements through revenue generated from our PCT operations, net
proceeds received from our public offering of our common stock in June 2015, the issuance of our common stock under our $30 million common stock
purchase agreement with Aspire Capital (the "2014 Purchase Agreement"), and existing cash balances. Additionally, we used equity and equity-linked
instruments to pay for services and compensation.

Net cash provided by or used in operating, investing and financing activities from continuing operations were as follows (in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015 2014
Net cash used in operating activities $ (21,827.0) $ (22,506.2)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,233.2 (3,308.2)
Net cash provided by financing activities 36,631.0 12,545.8

Operating Activities
Our cash used in operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2015 totaled approximately $21.8 million, which is the sum of (i) our net loss

of $36.4 million, adjusted for non-cash expenses totaling $10.4 million (which includes adjustments for equity-based compensation, depreciation and
amortization, impairments of intangible assets, and changes in acquisition-related
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contingent consideration liabilities and deferred tax liabilities), and (ii) changes in operating assets and liabilities providing approximately $4.2 million.

Our cash used in operating activities in the six months ended June 30, 2014 totaled approximately $22.5 million, which is the sum of (i) our net loss
of $26.6 million, adjusted for non-cash expenses totaling $7.1 million (which includes adjustments for equity-based compensation and depreciation and
amortization), and (ii) changes in operating assets and liabilities providing approximately $3.0 million.

Investing Activities

During the six months ended June 30, 2015, we spent approximately $1.8 million for property and equipment. In addition, we sold (net of purchases)
approximately $4.0 million marketable securities available for sale.

During the six months ended June 30, 2014, we spent approximately $2.4 million for property and equipment, and invested approximately $0.9
million in marketable securities.

Financing Activities
During the six months ended June 30, 2015, our financing activities consisted of the following:

*  We raised $28.8 million (or $26.5 million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses) through an
underwritten offering of 14.4 million shares of common stock at a public offering price of $2.00 per share.

*  We raised gross proceeds of approximately $9.4 million through the issuance of approximately 3.0 million shares of common stock under the
provisions of the 2014 Purchase Agreement with Aspire.

During the six months ended June 30, 2014, our financing activities consisted of the following:

*  We raised gross proceeds of approximately $10.1 million through the issuance of approximately 1.5 million shares of common stock under the
provisions of our equity line of credit with Aspire.

*  We raised approximately $1.6 million from the exercise warrants and options.

*  We received proceeds of $1.3 million from the issuance of notes payable relating to certain insurance policies and equipment financings, less
repayments of $0.4 million.

Liquidity and Capital Requirements Outlook
Liquidity

We anticipate requiring additional capital in order to fund the development of cell therapy product candidates, particularly in our Immuno-oncology
Program, Ischemic Repair Program and Immune Modulation Program, as well as to engage in strategic transactions. The most significant funding needs are
anticipated to be in connection with the conduct of our Intus study which is expected to cost approximately $45 million, for which we began activating
clinical sites during the fourth quarter of 2014, and other costs related to the immuno-oncology operations acquired in connection with the CSC Acquisition.
We also anticipate requiring additional capital to grow the PCT business, including implementing additional automation capabilities and pursuing plans to
establish commercial capacity, harmonize across locations, strengthen quality systems and expand internationally.

To meet our short and long term liquidity needs, we currently expect to use existing cash balances, our revenue generating activities, and a variety of
other means. Those other means include the common stock purchase agreements with Aspire Capital. In 2014, we entered into the 2014 Purchase Agreement
with Aspire Capital. As of June 30, 2015, subject to the terms and conditions of the 2014 Purchase Agreement, we could sell to Aspire Capital the lesser of (i)
$9.7 million of Common Stock or (ii) the dollar value of approximately 0.6 million shares of Common Stock based on the market price of the Common Stock
at the time of such sale as determined under the 2014 Purchase Agreement. In addition, in May 2015, we entered into a new Common Stock Purchase
Agreement with Aspire Capital (the “2015 Purchase Agreement”). As of June 30, 2015, subject to the terms and conditions of the 2015 Purchase Agreement,
we could sell to Aspire Capital the lesser of (i) $30 million of Common Stock or (ii) the dollar value of approximately 8.0 million shares of Common Stock
based on the market price of the Common Stock at the time of such sale
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as determined under the 2015 Purchase Agreement. In September 2014, we entered into a loan and security agreement with Oxford Finance LLC and to date
received $15.0 million of a potential $20.0 million in gross proceeds. In connection with the $15.0 million loan, we repaid all outstanding amounts due under
two loans from TD Bank, N.A. in the amount of approximately $3.1 million, and paid debt offering/issuance costs and interim period interest, resulting in net
proceeds from the loan of $11.7 million. The additional $5.0 million loan may be obtained if we enter into a strategic arrangement with respect to CLBS10
and receive an upfront payment of not less than $10.0 million in connection therewith, before September 19, 2015. In June 2015, we raised $28.8 million (or
$26.5 million in net proceeds after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses) through an underwritten offering of 14.4
million shares of common stock at a public offering price of $2.00 per share. In June 2015, the California Institute of Regenerative Medicine (“CIRM”)
granted the Company a $17.7 million award ("Award") to fund a significant portion of its Phase 3 Intus study to treat patients with recurrent Stage III or Stage
IV metastatic melanoma. The Award provides for a $3.0 million project initiation payment, which was received in June 2015, and $14.7 million in future
operational milestone payments, and is subject to a dollar-for-dollar match funding by the Company. Other sources of liquidity could include additional
potential issuances of equity securities in public or private financings, additional warrant exercises, option exercises, partnerships and/or collaborations,
and/or sale of assets. In addition, we expect to continue to seek as appropriate grants for scientific and clinical studies from the California Institute for
Regenerative Medicine, National Institutes of Health, Department of Defense, and other US and foreign governmental agencies and foundations. There can be
no assurance that we will be successful in qualifying for or obtaining such grants. Our history of operating losses and liquidity challenges, may make it
difficult for us to raise capital on acceptable terms or at all. The demand for the equity and debt of biopharmaceutical companies like ours is dependent upon
many factors, including the general state of the financial markets. During times of extreme market volatility, capital may not be available on favorable terms,
if at all. Our inability to obtain such additional capital could materially and adversely affect our business operations. We believe that our current cash balances
and revenue generating activities, along with access to the 2014 Purchase Agreement and 2015 Purchase Agreement, will be sufficient to fund the business
through the next 12 months.

While we continue to seek capital through a number of means, there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available on acceptable
terms, if at all, and our negotiating position in capital generating efforts may worsen as existing resources are used. Additional equity financing may be
dilutive to our stockholders; debt financing, if available, may involve significant cash payment obligations and covenants that restrict our ability to operate as
a business; our stock price may not reach levels necessary to induce option or warrant exercises; and asset sales may not be possible on terms we consider
acceptable. If we are unable to raise the funds necessary to meet our long-term liquidity needs, we may have to delay or discontinue the acquisition and
development of cell therapies, and/or the expansion of our business and we may have to curtail our operations.

Commitments and Contingencies
The following table summarizes our obligations to make future payments under current contracts as of June 30, 2015 (in thousands):

Payments Due Period

Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than 5 Years
Contractual Obligations
Notes Payable $ 2,1373 $ 1,114  § 1,0259 $ — S —
Long Term Debt 16,199.9 1,361.1 11,991.9 2,846.9 —
Purchase Obligations 667.2 333.6 333.6 — —
Operating Lease Obligations 7,895.9 2,007.7 3,450.4 1,975.9 461.9
Total $ 26,9003 § 4813.8 $ 16,801.8 § 48228 $ 461.9

Other significant commitments and contingencies include the following:
*  Under agreements with external clinical research organizations (“CROs”), we will incur expenses relating to our clinical trials for our therapeutic
product candidates in development. The timing and amount of these expenses are based on performance of services rendered and expenses as

incurred by the CROs and therefore, we cannot reasonably estimate the timing of these payments.

*  Under certain license, collaboration, and merger agreements, we are required to pay royalties, milestone and/or other payments upon successful
development and commercialization of products. However, successful research and
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development of pharmaceutical products is high risk, and most products fail to reach the market. Therefore, at this time the amount and timing of the

payments, if any, are not known.

»  From time to time, we are subject to legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of business. While
the outcome of pending claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that the outcome of any pending claims will have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or operating results.

Seasonality

The Company does not believe that its operations are seasonal in nature.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies and estimates during the three months ended June 30, 2015, compared to
those reported in our 2014 Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, creditworthiness, financing,
exchange rates or other factors. Our primary market risk exposure relates to changes in interest rates. Our earnings and cash flows are subject to fluctuations
due to changes in interest rates, principally in connection with our investments in marketable securities, which consist primarily of short-term money market
funds and municipal debt securities. However, as of June 30, 2015, we held no investments or marketable securities. Additionally, our outstanding $15.0
million long-term loan with Oxford Finance LLC, representing our largest component of debt, has a fixed interest rate until 2018, and is not subject to interest
rate exposure. As a result, we have no material exposure to market risk related to interest rate changes as of June 30, 2015.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are the Company’s controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files under the Exchange Act
is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. Due to the inherent
limitations of control systems, not all misstatements may be detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can
be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some
persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. Controls and procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the above objectives have been met.

As of June 30, 2015, the Company carried out an evaluation, with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective, at the reasonable assurance level, in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in
the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s
rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15, that
occurred during the Company’s last quarter to which this Quarterly Report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

34



Index

PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are no material changes to the disclosures previously reported in our 2014 Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously reported in our 2014 Form 10-K. See the risk factors set forth in the Company's
Annual Report on our 2014 Form 10-K under the caption "Item 1 A - Risk Factors".

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

On April 23, 2015, in consideration for services previously rendered, the Company agreed to issue to a legal services firm, 30,000 shares of the
Company's restricted common stock vesting immediately upon issuance.

The offer and sale by the Company of the securities described above were made in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section
4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering. The offer and sale of
such securities were made without general solicitation or advertising to “accredited investors” as such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act and/or pursuant to Regulation D and may not be resold in the United States or to U.S. persons unless registered under
the Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.
Not applicable.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The Exhibit Index appearing immediately after the signature page to this Form 10-Q is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

August 6, 2015

August 6, 2015

August 6,2015
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Title: Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Robert S. Vaters Name: Robert S.
Vaters

Title: President and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ Joseph Talamo Name: Joseph
Talamo

Title: Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief
Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)



Index

*

&k

CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.
FORM 10Q

Exhibit Index

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc., filed
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on October 3, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 3.1

= to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 3, 2013 and incorporated
herein by reference).
3% Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.,
’ dated May 29, 2015 (effective June 8, 2015).
10,1 First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated June 17, 2015, by and between
’ Caladrius Biosciences, Inc., and Oxford Finance LLC.
311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
' 0f 2002
31.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
’ of 2002
30 1% Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
’ pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
39 g Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
’ pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
Filed herewith.

Furnished herewith.
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STATE OF DELAWARE
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
NEOSTEM, INC.

NeoStem, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware (the “Corporation”), does hereby certify as follows:

1. The name of the Corporation is NeoStem, Inc. The date of filing of its original Certificate of Incorporation with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware was September 18, 1980, under the name of Fidelity Medical Services, Inc. The name of
the Corporation was changed to Corniche Group Incorporated by filing a Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of
Incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware on September 28, 1995. The name of the Corporation was changed to Phase
IIT Medical Inc. by filing a Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
July 24, 2003. The name of the Corporation was changed to NeoStem, Inc. by filing an Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware on August 29, 2006. The Certificate of Incorporation was Amended and
Restated in its entirety by filing an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
October 3, 2013.

2. This Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of NeoStem, Inc., in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A, has been duly adopted by the directors of the Corporation in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

3. The Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation so adopted reads in its entirety as set forth in Exhibit A
attached hereto and is incorporated herein by reference.

4. This Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation shall be effective on the date of filing with the Secretary of State
of Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the Corporation has caused this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be
executed by its Chief Executive Officer on this 8th day of June, 2015.

NEOSTEM, INC.

By:/s/ David J. Mazzo
Name: David J. Mazzo

Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT to Loan and Security Agreement (this “Amendment”) is entered into as of June 17, 2015, by and between OXFORD
FINANCE LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with an office located at 133 North Fairfax Street, Alexandria, Virginia 22314 (“Oxford”), as
collateral agent (in such capacity, “Collateral Agent”), the Lenders listed on Schedule 1.1 of the Loan Agreement (as defined below) or otherwise a party
thereto from time to time including Oxford in its capacity as a Lender (each a “Lender” and collectively, the “Lenders”), NEOSTEM, INC., a Delaware
corporation with offices located at 420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 350, New York, NY 10170 (“Parent”) and the other borrowers listed on the signature page
of the Loan Agreement (individually and collectively, jointly and severally, “Borrower”).

Recitals
A. Collateral Agent, Lenders and Borrower have entered into that certain Loan and Security Agreement dated as of September 26, 2014 (as
amended from time to time, the “Loan Agreement”).
B. Lenders have extended credit to Borrower for the purposes permitted in the Loan Agreement.
C. Borrower has requested that Collateral Agent and Lenders amend the Loan Agreement to change the corporate names of Parent and
PROGENITOR CELL THERAPY, LLC.
D. Collateral Agent and Lenders have agreed to amend certain provisions of the Loan Agreement, but only to the extent, in accordance with

the terms, subject to the conditions and in reliance upon the representations and warranties set forth below.
Agreement

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings given to them in the Loan
Agreement.
2. Amendments to Loan Agreement.

1. All references in the Loan Documents to Parent’s name “NEOSTEM, INC.” shall hereafter mean and refer to “CALADRIUS

BIOSCIENCES, INC.” “CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.” is hereby deemed to be “Parent” and a “Borrower” under the Loan Agreement and the other
Loan Documents, shall have all rights and obligations of Parent and a Borrower thereunder, and agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of the
Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents and hereby makes to Collateral Agent all representations, warranties, grants of security interest and
covenants contained in the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents as of the date hereof.

2. All references in the Loan Documents to Borrower’s name “PROGENITOR CELL THERAPY, LLC” shall hereafter mean and
refer to “PCT, LLC, A CALADRIUS COMPANY” “PCT, LLC, A CALADRIUS COMPANY” is hereby deemed to be a “Borrower” under the Loan
Agreement and the other Loan Documents, shall have all rights and obligations of a Borrower thereunder, and agrees to be bound by all the terms and
conditions of the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents and hereby makes to Collateral Agent all representations, warranties, grants of security
interest and covenants contained in the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents as of the date hereof.

3. Section 13 (Definitions). Subsection (e) of the defined term “Permitted Indebtedness” hereby is amended and restated in its
entirety as follows:

“(e)  Indebtedness consisting of capitalized lease obligations and purchase money Indebtedness, in each case incurred by
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to finance the acquisition, repair, improvement or construction of fixed or capital assets of such person,
provided that (i) the aggregate outstanding principal amount of all such Indebtedness does not exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00)
at any time and (ii) the principal amount of such Indebtedness does not exceed the lower of the cost or fair market value of the property so

acquired or built or of such repairs or improvements financed with such Indebtedness (each measured at the time of such acquisition,
repair, improvement or construction is made);”



3. Limitation of Amendments.

1. The amendments set forth in Section 2 are effective for the purposes set forth herein and shall be limited precisely as written and
shall not be deemed to (a) be a consent to any amendment, waiver or modification of any other term or condition of any Loan Document, or (b) otherwise
prejudice any right or remedy which Collateral Agent or any Lender may now have or may have in the future under or in connection with any Loan
Document.

2. This Amendment shall be construed in connection with and as part of the Loan Documents and all terms, conditions,
representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth in the Loan Documents, except as herein amended, are hereby ratified and confirmed and shall
remain in full force and effect.

4. Representations and Warranties. To induce Collateral Agent and Lenders to enter into this Amendment, Borrower hereby represents
and warrants to Collateral Agent and Lenders as follows:

1. Immediately after giving effect to this Amendment (a) the representations and warranties contained in the Loan Documents are
true, accurate and complete in all material respects as of the date hereof (except to the extent such representations and warranties relate to an earlier date, in
which case they are true and correct as of such date), and (b) no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing;

2. Borrower has the power and authority to execute and deliver this Amendment and to perform its obligations under the Loan
Agreement, as amended by this Amendment;

3. The organizational documents of Borrower delivered to Collateral Agent and Lenders on the Effective Date, or subsequent
thereto, remain true, accurate and complete and have not been amended, supplemented or restated (except for the amendments delivered pursuant to Section
6(iii) below) and are and continue to be in full force and effect;

4. The execution and delivery by Borrower of this Amendment and the performance by Borrower of its obligations under the Loan
Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, have been duly authorized;

5. The execution and delivery by Borrower of this Amendment and the performance by Borrower of its obligations under the Loan
Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, do not and will not contravene (a) any law or regulation binding on or affecting Borrower, (b) any contractual
restriction with a Person binding on Borrower, (¢) any order, judgment or decree of any court or other governmental or public body or authority, or
subdivision thereof, binding on Borrower, or (d) the organizational documents of Borrower;

6. The execution and delivery by Borrower of this Amendment and the performance by Borrower of its obligations under the Loan
Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, do not require any order, consent, approval, license, authorization or validation of, or filing, recording or
registration with, or exemption by any governmental or public body or authority, or subdivision thereof, binding on Borrower, except as already has been
obtained or made; and

7. This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by Borrower and is the binding obligation of Borrower, enforceable
against Borrower in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, liquidation,
moratorium or other similar laws of general application and equitable principles relating to or affecting creditors’ rights.

5. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts and all of such counterparts taken together shall be
deemed to constitute one and the same instrument.

6. Effectiveness. This Amendment shall be deemed effective upon the due execution and delivery to Collateral Agent and Lenders of (i) this
Amendment by each party hereto, (ii) updated Corporate Borrowing Certificates for Parent and PCT, LLC, A CALADRIUS COMPANY, (iii) copies of the
amendments to the Operating Documents of Parent evidencing Parent’s corporate name change, (iv) copies of the amendments to the Operating Documents of
PCT, LLC, A CALADRIUS COMPANY evidencing PCT, LLC, A CALADRIUS COMPANY’s corporate name change, (v) an amended UCC financing
statement for Parent, (vi) an amended UCC financing statement for PCT, LLC, A CALADRIUS COMPANY and (vii) Borrower’s payment of all Lenders’
Expenses incurred through the date of this Amendment.

[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank)



In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered as of the date first written above.

BORROWER:
CALADRIUS BIOSCIENCES, INC.
(F/K/A NEOSTEM, INC.) PCT ALLENDALE, LLC
By_/s/ David J. Mazzo By: /s/ George Goldberger
Name: David J. Mazzo, PhD Name: George Goldberger
Title: CEO Title: Manager
NEOSTEM ONCOLOGY, LLC ATHELOS CORPORATION
By: /s/ David J. Mazzo By: /s/ David J. Mazzo
Name: David J. Mazzo, PhD Name: David J. Mazzo, PhD
Title: Manager Title: Manager
PCT, LLC, A CALADRIUS COMPANY (F/K/A
AMORCYTE, LLC PROGENITOR CELL THERAPY, LLC)
By:/s/ David J. Mazzo By: /s/ David J. Mazzo
Its: Manager Its: Manager
NEOSTEM FAMILY STORAGE, LLC STEM CELL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
By: /s/ George Goldberger By: /s/ David. ] Mazzo
Its: Manager Its: Manager
COLLATERAL AGENT AND
LENDER:

OXFORD FINANCE LLC
By: /s/ Mark Davis
Name: Mark Davis

Title: Vice President- Finance, Secretary &
Treasurer

[Signature Page to First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement|



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, David J. Mazzo,PhD, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 2015

/s/ David J. Mazzo, PhD

Name: David J. Mazzo, PhD

Title: Chief Executive Officer of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 has been provided to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. and will be retained by Caladrius
Biosciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert S. Vaters, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 2015
/s/ Robert S. Vaters
Name: Robert S. Vaters

Title: President and Chief Financial Officer of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 has been provided to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. and will be retained by Caladrius
Biosciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, David J. Mazzo, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company as of the dates presented and
the results of operations of the Company for the periods presented.

Dated: August 6, 2015

/s/ David J. Mazzo, PhD
David J. Mazzo, PhD
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350,
Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q or as a separate disclosure document.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. and will be retained by Caladrius
Biosciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Robert S. Vaters, President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company as of the dates presented and
the results of operations of the Company for the periods presented.

Dated: August 6, 2015

/s/ Robert S. Vaters
Robert S. Vaters
President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350,
Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q or as a separate disclosure document.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Caladrius Biosciences, Inc. and will be retained by Caladrius
Biosciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




